O
(72,

Reporting
Services

Earth Negotiations Bulletin

A Reporting Service for Environment and Development Negotiations
Online at http://www.iisd.ca/forestry/unff/unff8/

Vol. 13 No. 168

Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development (IISD)

Friday, 24 April 2009

UNFF8 HIGHLIGHTS:
THURSDAY, 23 APRIL 2009

Throughout the day, UNFF8 delegates continued deliberations
in two working groups (WG): WGI on forests in a changing
environment; and WGII on means of implementation. WGI
continued a first reading of recommendations on addressing
key challenges facing forests in a changing environment, and
then heard statements on climate change, biodiversity and
desertification. WGII addressed the elements of a global forest
fund and a facilitative mechanism, and in the afternoon briefly
discussed a Co-Chairs’ draft text on financing.

WORKING GROUP I

KEY CHALLENGES: Recommendations to member
states: On prioritizing reforestation and afforestation, the EU
requested referring to forest landscape restoration rather than
expansion of forest plantations.

Recommendations to UNFF: The EU supported retaining
a broad reference to forest law enforcement and governance
(FLEGQG) processes. On supporting the CPF Global Forest Expert
Panels initiative, the US, BRAZIL and the EU suggested noting
that the Panels are advisory rather than scientific bodies.

Recommendations to CPF: Several suggested referring to
“interlinked” rather than “aggregate” effects of deforestation
and forest degradation, biodiversity loss and climate change.
On reporting the impacts on indigenous and forest dependent
communities, INDONESIA suggested involving such
communities in developing climate change responses. On
reporting the impacts of the food, fuel and financial crises,
INDONESIA added reference to SFM’s role in crisis response,
and the AFRICAN GROUP and others added reference to the
water crisis. The US suggested organizing a panel at UNFF9
on crises. The AFRICAN GROUP proposed that the CPF also
streamline funding procedures and facilitate access to them.

Recommendations to donors and international
organizations: The AFRICAN GROUP requested referring to
inter-governmental organizations. The PACIFIC COMMUNITY
and MALAYSIA added reference to simplifying access to funds.
INDIA called for reference to countries with low forest cover
per capita. BRAZIL and CHINA called for stronger language
on donor commitment. Many noted the need to wait for WGII
outcomes before finalizing the text.

Recommendations to the UNFF Secretariat: Many
delegates expressed reservations on developing new indicators
for the first and third global objectives on forests (reversing the
loss of forest cover, and increasing the area of protected and
sustainably managed forests, respectively), with the AFRICAN
GROUP suggesting developing new indicators only if new
knowledge and technology is available.

The AFRICAN GROUP suggested adding reporting to
UNFF9 on cooperation with the UNFCCC Secretariat and the
Joint Liaison Group of the Rio Conventions. On gaps in the
field of SFM in international forest-related agreements, the EU
suggested adding reference to the Convention on International
Trade in Endangered Species, the Ramsar Convention and
FLEG processes. The US wished to focus on how to mainstream
the Forum’s work with other processes.

CLIMATE CHANGE: The EU called for further
development of indicators and suggested joint activities with
UNFCCC. The AFRICAN GROUP called for adequate and
predictable funding and technology transfer, in particular for
energy production. The US and NEW ZEALAND stressed the
importance of science and research, and regional processes such
as the Montreal Process. CHINA stressed technology transfer,
and asked how UNFF should take into account the outcome of
UNFCCC COP 15 on reducing emissions from deforestation
and forest degradation (REDD).

NIGER cautioned against excluding low forest cover
countries (LFCCs) from REDD. CHILE called for mechanisms
for developing countries to incorporate emissions reductions
in their sustainable development plans. BRAZIL stressed
that deforestation needs to be addressed as a socio-economic
process. URUGUAY highlighted methodological and regulatory
problems in implementing afforestation and reforestation
programmes. LEBANON requested text on the causes of forest
fires.

The DOMINICAN REPUBLIC called for transboundary
cooperation in implementing reforestation programmes. NEW
ZEALAND emphasized cross-sectoral links, in particular with
agriculture. NEPAL noted the vulnerability of alpine ecosystems
and impacts of glacier retreat on water availability. PAPUA
NEW GUINEA proposed addressing links between SFM and
carbon trade.

DESERTIFICATION: The US stressed the importance of
addressing land degradation. CHINA mentioned its country’s
afforestation and reforestation efforts. The AFRICAN GROUP
mentioned Africa’s advantages regarding personnel trained in
forest monitoring and functioning regional entities, but noted
institutional weaknesses and a lack of forest equipment. He said
deforestation should be considered at the landscape level.

BIODIVERSITY: BRAZIL mentioned regional cooperation
on forest monitoring and said biopiracy and illegal wildlife
trade are important issues. The US described its initiatives
in biodiversity education and collaboration with indigenous
peoples to prevent forest fires. The EU called for a UNFF
decision on conservation and sustainable use of biodiversity
within and outside protected areas, and recommended tapping

This issue of the Earth Negotiations Bulletin © <enb@iisd.org> is written and edited by Reem Hajjar, Stefan Jungcurt, Ph.D., Kate Louw, Laura Russo, and Peter Wood, Ph.D.
The Digital Editor is Dan Birchall. The Editor is Pamela S. Chasek, Ph.D. <pam@iisd.org>. The Director of IISD Reporting Services is Langston James “Kimo” Goree VI
<kimo@iisd.org>. The Sustaining Donors of the Bulletin are the United Kingdom (through the Department for International Development — DFID), the Government of the United
States of America (through the Department of State Bureau of Oceans and International Environmental and Scientific Affairs), the Government of Canada (through CIDA), the
Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the German Federal Ministry for Economic Cooperation and Development (BMZ), the German Federal Ministry for the Environment, Nature
Conservation and Nuclear Safety (BMU), the Netherlands Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the European Commission (DG-ENV), and the Italian Ministry for the Environment, Land
and Sea. General Support for the Bulletin during 2009 is provided by the Norwegian Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Government of Australia, the Austrian Federal Ministry of
Agriculture, Forestry, Environment and Water Management, the Ministry of Environment of Sweden, the New Zealand Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Trade, SWAN International,
Swiss Federal Office for the Environment (FOEN), the Finnish Ministry for Foreign Affairs, the Japanese Ministry of Environment (through the Institute for Global Environmental
Strategies - IGES), the Japanese Ministry of Economy, Trade and Industry (through the Global Industrial and Social Progress Research Institute - GISPRI), the Government of’
Iceland, and the United Nations Environment Programme (UNEP). Funding for the translation of the Bulletin into Spanish at this meeting has been provided by the Ministry of
Environment of Spain. The opinions expressed in the Bulletin are those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of IISD or other donors. Excerpts from the Bulletin
may be used in non-commercial publications with appropriate academic citation. For information on the Bulletin, including requests to provide reporting services, contact the
Director of IISD Reporting Services at <kimo@jiisd.org>, +1-646-536-7556 or 300 East 56th St., 11A, New York, New York 10022, USA. The ENB Team at UNFF8 can be
contacted by e-mail at <reem@jiisd.org>.




=

RE#U[ting
Services

Friday, 24 April 2009

"B Earth Negotiations Bulletin

Vol. 13 No. 168 Page 2

indigenous traditional knowledge. INDONESIA outlined
domestic efforts to conserve forest biodiversity, including
certification and monitoring systems.

REGIONAL AND SUBREGIONAL INPUTS: The US
reported on the North-American Carbon Program aimed at
developing common protocols for carbon-cycle analysis.
AUSTRALIA noted recommendations from the Swiss-Australian
Region-Led Initiative on Regional Inputs to UNFF, including
enhancing linkages between regional and global processes. The
PACIFIC COMMUNITY called for capacity building.

ENHANCED COOPERATION AND COORDINATION:
The EU and SWITZERLAND suggested that the UNFF
Secretariat: explore and implement joint activities with other
global instruments, in particular the Rio Conventions; participate
in the Rio Conventions’ Joint Liaison Group; and report
on activities at UNFF9. The US suggested a focused set of
guidelines for joint activities, and ARGENTINA stressed the
need for a clear mandate in that regard. The EU also called for
enhanced coordination regarding FLEG implementation and
improving trade in legally harvested timber. The AFRICAN
GROUP and the US stressed the importance of civil society
participation.

WORKING GROUP 11

AUSTRALIA, SWITZERLAND, NEW ZEALAND, IRAN
and JAPAN expressed concern with the Co-Chairs’ suggestion
to discuss specific elements of a global forest fund, preferring a
general discussion of an overall financing framework. BRAZIL,
SENEGAL, the EU and ARGENTINA supported considering
the details of both financing proposals. ARGENTINA noted
that specific discussions would allow delegations to consider a
broader framework where both proposals could be incorporated,
and delegates agreed.

GLOBAL FOREST FUND: Beneficiaries: BRAZIL, with
INDONESIA and COSTA RICA, stressed that funding should be
equally accessible to developing countries. JAPAN stressed the
need to address gaps in SFM implementation, and to clarify the
roles of UNFF and CPF members in the financial framework.
The AFRICAN GROUP, CUBA and PAKISTAN noted that
recipients should be developing countries, with an emphasis on
LFCCs. The AFRICAN GROUP added that this should inlcude
small island states and high forest cover low deforestation
countries. VENEZUELA suggested that funding should extend
beyond climate-related activities. The US said the financial
landscape has changed significantly since 2007, and recalled that
the advisory group on finance identified gaps that need to be
targeted. CHINA noted that regional and country groups should
also be eligible for funding.

Investment and selection criteria: SWITZERLAND and
NORWAY suggested considering conditionalities for grants from
a forest fund, and that low levels of demand for forest-related
official development assistance indicate a low priority of forests
on national agendas. PALAU countered that this may indicate
a lack of capacity to apply for aid and a lack of access, not a
lack of need. GABON asked that criteria be aligned with each
country’s national plans. JAPAN and INDIA stressed focusing on
enabling conditions for investment.

Scope of activities: INDIA noted that support from the fund
should be based on results and performance, and that the fund
should be transparent and efficient. AUSTRALIA expressed
concern that the scope of the fund could overlap with other
mechanisms and fora. PALAU, with BRAZIL, emphasized
flexibility. ARGENTINA highlighted the need to build reporting
capacity.

Targeted funding volume and sources: ARGENTINA noted
the difficulty of predicting voluntary contributions.

Hosting organization: BRAZIL suggested the creation of an
executive board with geographically balanced representation,
appointed by UNFF, and emphasized minimization of transaction
costs. In response to a question regarding UNFF’s legal

capacity to administrate funding, UNFF Director Jan McAlpine
responded that in principle UNFF could do so, but recalled
that UNFF is primarily a facilitative forum that draws upon
CPF member resources to address gaps, based on their various
mandates.

Stakeholder participation: BRAZIL expressed support for
stakeholder participation, and WOMEN requested inclusion of
Major Groups within financing considerations.

FACILITATIVE MECHANISM: SWITZERLAND,
with the RUSSTAN FEDERATION and the EU, requested a
document summarizing the discussions and outcomes so far
before resuming discussions. BRAZIL enquired whether a draft
text could be produced to facilitate negotiations.

NEW ZEALAND requested clarity on the term “facilitative
mechanism.” McAlpine acknowledged that comparisons are
being made to the Global Mechanism of the UNCCD, and
said the proposed mechanism would provide easier access to
and catalyze financing for the implementation of the Forest
Instrument.

The US supported a flexible facilitative mechanism that
would implement measures for an enabling environment and
increase coherence on financing sources. The AFRICAN
GROUP noted the need for a mechanism that would simplify
access to financing.

After WGII reconvened in the late afternoon, the WGII
Co-Chairs distributed a text, entitled “the Road Map for
Financing SFM/Implementation of the NLBI.” Sudan, for
the G-77/CHINA, and supported by numerous G-77/China
members, objected to the draft on the basis that it did not take
into consideration the outcome of the G-77/China consultation
that had occurred earlier in the afternoon.

The EU and AUSTRALIA supported proceeding to
negotiations based on the Co-Chairs’ text. Co-Chair Kile
acknowledged the submission of the G-77/China’s proposed
text, but noted that negotiations would commence in the
morning based on the circulated text, and adjourned the session.

IN THE CORRIDORS

After three days of rain in New York City, the storm moved
inside UN Headquarters as UNFF8 delegates clashed over
means of implementation (i.e. the Forest Instrument’s future
funding mechanism). The level of discussion in WGII’s morning
session on elements of a global forest fund was still perceived
as “abstract” by many, circling around general ideas, principles
and possible proposals, and many expressed their eagerness
to get down to the nitty gritty to define what is actually being
discussed. Any sense of progress felt after the Co-Chairs
responded with a draft text in the afternoon was tempered by
the G-77/China, who felt overlooked and objected vehemently
to the text, since it had been developed while their group was
developing their own proposals. Several countries within
the Group, based on a cursory review of the draft, expressed
disappointment that the morning’s discussions of a global forest
fund only amounted to a small paragraph at the end of the
document. Further resolution of the issue was postponed until
Friday, with some delegates bracing for a hurricane of bracketed
text. Others took it in stride, noting that this is par for the course
when it comes to forest negotiations.

While the storm was brewing over financing, WGI delegates
sailed relatively smoothly through recommendations on key
challenges. When they were asked to develop a message that
UNFF could send to the “outside world,” however, most felt
that UNFF8 should focus on sending a message to UNFCCC to
ensure that REDD does not run counter to the objectives of SFM.
While opinions still diverged over what would be the appropriate
content and form of the message, some questioned its usefulness
in general. Those familiar with the climate change discussions
said that most likely UNFCCC would do little more than “take
note” of the message, which in the words of one delegate, would
be equivalent to filing it under “recycling.”




<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


